  



            FAMILY HISTORIES
DAVID ARMSTRONG – was born in the year 1746 in Donegal, Ireland. He was married to Sarah Harris in 1779, in Cumberland County, Penna. He died March 20, 1811, in Butler County, Penna.

SARAH  HARRIS – wife of David Armstrong, was born in 1760 in Cumberland County, Penna., and died February 3,1816, in Butler County, Penna. Sarah Harris was married to David Armstrong in 1779.

David Armstrong, with his son George and daughter Rebecca, came to what is now Butler County, Penna., from Westmoreland County, Penna., about 1794. They accomplished this journey on horseback, bringing with them as many household implements as possible.  They could not use wagons at that time since there were no roads, - only trails and paths.  They lived in a tent or  sort of wigwam until they could construct a cabin.  In the fall of that year David Armstrong returned to Westmoreland County to bring the remainder of his possessions and family consisting of his wife and five children whose names were Archibald, Thomas, Roland, Polly, and David.  Anna, Samuel, and Elizabeth were children born later in Butler County.  Elizabeth, “Aunty Betsey” as she was known to later residents of the district, was the last of the family to pass away.  Her age, at death, was somewhat over one hundred years.  George, the eldest of the family, settled in Centerville (now know as Slippery Rock, Butler County, Penna.)  His wife’s maiden name was Elizabeth McCune.  Archibald resided many years in what is now Slippery Rock Township.  He subsequently moved to Lawrence County where he died in 1867, aged eighty-four years.  Thomas lived and died on the farm where his father had built his cabin.  Roland learned the tannery business, working with his uncle, Roland Harris, in Path Valley, Franklin County, Penna.  He and James McCune established a tannery in Lawrence County.  Later he sold his interest to McCune and went to Ohio where he continued in his occupation only a short time.  He finally located in Pittsburgh, Penna., at which place he died soon after the War of the Rebellion.  The major portion of his family was reared in Pittsburgh.  Polly became the wife of Alexander McBride who was well-known in Butler, Mercer and Lawrence Counties (he is mentioned later in this history).  David and Samuel were both stone masons.  The former died at Mechanicsburgh (now Jacksville), Butler County, and the latter in Mahoning County, Ohio.  All of these boys, particularly George, in their youth mingled a great deal with the Indians, entering the chase with them and becoming much attached to their mode of life and customs.  George Armstrong, who resided many years in the ancestral home where the red man was once a constant and welcome visitor, was the son of Thomas Armstrong and a grandson of the first David Armstrong.
Much of the above history is taken from notes by Mrs. Mame McBride Beisel on family history in 1883, and revised to bring it more up-to-date, R.R.M.  (Mrs. Beisel was only daughter of Thomas McBride.)

David Armstrong lived in Path Valley, Penna., in 1785, later going to Westmoreland County.  He was a soldier in the Revolutionary War having enlisted in the Cumberland County Militia an 1777, under the Command of Col. James Dunlap in Capt. Noah Abraham’s Company, Cumberland County, Penna., serving until August 28, 1779.  In 1780 he served as a private in the 6th Battalion commanded by Lt. Col. James Johnson and Joseph C. Clark (rank not known).  In 1782 he served in 8th Company, 1st Battalion, under Capt. Noah Abraham and Lt. Col. James Johnson.  His record of service may be found in Pennsylvania Archives, Vol., 6, Pages 86, 121, 128, and 184, Fifth Series.  Also look up No. 94108 – James Armstrong and Hugh Martin in Penna. Archives.
David Armstrong, born in Donegal, Ireland, in 1746, came to America with his parents, Thomas and Isabella (Maiden name not known) in 1764 .  He was married to Sarah Harris, who was born in 1760, a daughter of Roland Harris who resided at what is now Fort Loudon on the Lincoln Highway, at the foot of Path Valley. See Harris History).
Thomas Armstrong, his wife and at least two sons, William and David, came from Donegal County, Ireland, in 1764 and settled in Path Valley, Cumberland County – now Franklin County-
Pennsylvania.  There he became the owner of considerable land situated on the west branch of the Conococheague Creek, about eight miles above Fort Loudon on Penna. Highway No. 75.

Thomas Armstrong evidently was a descendant of Thomas Armstrong, Fifth Lord of Mangerton, who was the ancestor of the Armstrong’s of the north of Ireland.  He had lived in Donegal County, which joins Fermanaugh County, from whence John and Edward Armstrong emigrated in 1736, and settled in Cumberland County, Penna., very near Path Valley.  It is believed that this, together with the similarity of family names running through the records, is very conclusive circumstantial evidence.  The John Armstrong here mentioned was a Major General in the Revolutionary War.  Thomas Armstrong died intestate about 1797 and William, his eldest son, and Joseph Armstrong, settled his estate.  (See records in Chambersburg, Franklin County, Penna.)  These records also disclose that the land had been purchased from Noah Abraham, by Thomas Armstrong.
Family of David and Sarah Harris Armstrong:

Names of children

Their wives or husbands
Born

Married

Died
George Armstrong

11-2-1780



8-28-
   Elizabeth McCune

3-24-1776



8-4-1848

Rebecca Armstrong

5-17-1782
3-10-1806

1-4-1854

   Capt. James McCune
5-7-1771
3-10-1806

4-6-1825

Archibald Armstrong

3-6-1785
10-8-1807

6-

   Elizabeth Wallace

10- 8-1788
     “


12-12-1888

Thomas Armstrong

8-27-1790
12-18-1824

4-3-1860

   Frances Drake

3-22-1800
       “


10-3-1875

Ronald Armstrong

2-23-1790
6-16-1816

5-17-1864

   Jane Donnel


         1794
     “


4-27-1843

Mary (Polly) Armstrong
6-15-1795
5-25-1820

4-21-1847

   Alexander McBride

12-20-1795
     “


10-14-1878

David Armstrong

3-26-1798
1-11-1821
            12-31-1840

   Jane Jack


5-23-1800
     “


7-4-1842

Anna Armstrong

8-10-1800
1-11-1821

8-19-1848

   Samuel Jack


2-26-1798
     “


4-9-1845

Samuel Armstrong

1-28-1803
11-10-1826

2-20-1853

   Jane Irwin


1-13-1801
      “


4-1-1840

   Nancy Robb Loveland


6-1-1843

not known

Elizabeth Armstrong

1-6-1807
12-31-1829

4-7-1888

   William McNees

1-11-1807
      “


4-12-1856

Note:  Capt. James McCune, above, served in the War of 1812.

THE HARRIS FAMILY:  The only history of the Harris family available starts with John Harris, Sr., a native of Yorkshire, England, born in 1673.  At his majority he came to America with several brothers.  He spent several years in Philadelphia.  With one or two of his brothers he entered the trade with the Indians in 1705.  He was married twice.  The name of his first wife is not known.  She was the Mother of seven children.  The second wife was Esther Say, an English lady.  Prior to 1725 he made an attempt to settle on the Susquehanna near the present site of Bainbridge, but in 1726 he moved to the Indian Village of Paixton, now Paxton, near the present city of Harrisburg, where he established a trading post and a ferry.  He died in December 1748, and is buried with his first wife in what is now Harris Park on the bank of the river, in the city of Harrisburg.  He was the first settler west of the Conewago hills.
John Harris, Jr., was the son of John Harris, Sr., and was the first white child born in Pennsylvania west of the Conewago hills at the present site of Harrisburg, in 1726.  When but a young man, John Harris, Jr., was occasionally employed by the province of Pennsylvania to transact business with the Indians at a critical period.  His house was frequented by the Indians.  Several important conferences were held there between the several tribes on the Susquehanna and the Ohio, and the Government of Pennsylvania.  Prior to 1754 he had been sent on an Indian mission to Ohio, and at the same time to seek the most  practicable route from his ferry (Harris Ferry) to Logstown (now known as Ambridge), below the area which is now the city of Pittsburgh.  Having accepted an Indian agency he was faithful to his charge both to the Indians and to the Government.  The latter he kept constantly informed of what was going on in the frontier settlements, for at that time many of the Indians on the Ohio had taken up the hatchet again against the English.  He was a great patriot.  When the independence was agitated he thought the declaration premature, but when independence was declared he advanced three thousand pounds to carry on the contest.  He was a man of more than ordinary forecast.  He understood the advantages of Harris’ Ferry.  Twenty years before he had laid out Harrisburg, he observed to Judge Hallenback that his place would become of central business and the seat of the Government of Pennsylvania.  When he laid out Harrisburg in 1785 he conveyed to the commissioners along with other property, four acres of ground on Capitol Hill in trust for public use.  He also gave lot No. 185, on the corner of chestnut and Third Streets, to the German Reformed and Lutherans, in 1787, to erect a church theron.  After a life of usefulness he closed his eventful life and died July 29, 1791.  His remains rest in the Paxton churchyard, near Harrisburg.
It might be interesting to note that the route John Harris, Jr., selected to Logstown, is almost identical with the national route familiar to most of us as the William Penn Highway.  Also, some of the same family later founded the town of Harrisville, Butler County, Penna.  Roland Harris, father of Sarah Harris Armstrong, whose family in 1791 founded the city of Harrisburg, died in March of the year 1797.  He settled in Path Valley at the present town of Fort Loudon in 1762.  His first wife, Rebecca, died April 4, 1772.  His second wife, Elizabeth, died in 1809.  The children of the first wife were James, Richard, Hanna, Sarah, and Roland.  The children of his second wife were Ephriam, Joseph, and Mary.  Ephriam founded Harrisville, Butler County, Penna.
ORIGIN OF THE NAME “ARMSTRONG”:  The great and wide-spread family of Armstrong’s derive their name from the following circumstances.  An ancient King of Scotland had his horse killed under him in battle and was immediately remounted by Siward, his armor bearer.  For this timely assistance the King amply rewarded him with lands; and to perpetuate the memory of so important, as well as the manner in which it was performed, (Siward took the King by the thigh and set him on the saddle).  His Royal Master gave him the appellation of “Arm Strong” and assigned to him for crest, an armored hand and arm, - in the hand a leg and foot in armor, couped at the thigh – all proper.  This crest has been used for centuries by the Armstrongs.  Their motto is “Invectus Maneo” (I remain unconquered).
ALEXANDER McBRIDE, SENIOR:  Was born in County Down, Ireland, December 20, 1795; died October 14, 1878 at the residence of his son, Robert M. McBride, in Scott Township, Lawrence County, Penna.  He was married to Mary (Polly) Armstrong, May 25, 1820, and to Nancy McCaslin, June 1, 1848.  Polly Armstrong McBride was born in June 15, 1795, in Westmoreland Co., Pa., and died April 21, 1847.
Nancy McCaslin McBride:   (the following is copied from the Bible of Alexander McBride):

Nancy McBride, my wife, left my bed and board, November 3, 1873, after living together for 25 years, 5 months & 2 days, to live with her only son, Samuel McCaslin on his father’s old farm, who furnished her a room to live in & took with her all things necessary for house-keeping which she chose., with her expectation of living with ease and comfort near her relations, rather than with me, which I hope & wish she may realize.  Alexander McBride, after the separation, went to live with his son, Robert M. McBride. Alexander McBride came to America from Ireland about the year 1813.  Not a great deal is known about his early years except that he taught school in a schoolhouse which stood on the south bank of Wolf Creek and just north of the present town of Slippery Rock, Butler Co., Pa.  Tradition has it that many of his students were almost grown men and not too susceptible to discipline.  That on one occasion, on coming to the schoolhouse of a morning, he found some of the larger boys were already inside and had the doors barricaded.  He promptly went into the woods and cut a substantial blackthorn switch, then climbed to the roof and down the chimney taking the culprits in the rear and making them very willing to get out of the room.  Alexander McBride built the first flour mill in the district.  It was located on slippery Rock Creek, just above where it is joined by Wolf Creek, and quite a large dam for power for the mill, - the dam a large area for storage of water.  He secured water rights from owners of considerable land adjoining the creek.  Many of the deeds for this same property even today mention that water right.  He had considerable knowledge of engineering as practiced in those early days, and had much to do with the surveying of various lands which were taken up by settlers in the Eighteen Twenties.  He later transported much freight by wagons drawn by four- and six-horse teams from what is now Harlansburg in Lawrence County to Pittsburgh before any railways were built in Western Penna.  He operated a general store in Harlansburg until just a few years before his death.
Family of Alexander and Polly Armstrong McBride:

Names of their children,

Their Wives or Husbands

Born

Married

Died
David Armstrong McBride

2-26-1821
3-16-1848
           9-29-1879

   Elizabeth Struthers


10-25-1825


           6-23-1885

Rebecca Jane McBride

6-27-1823
6-26-1845

8-29-1909

   Amaziah Kelly


6-8-1821



4-30-1895

Alexander McBride, Jr. 

3-23-1825
Never married

10-3-1906

Thomas McBride


2-18-1828
11-6-1856

6-2-1904

   Eliza Winans


9-18-1834



11-12-1920

Sarah Ann McBride


1-14-1830
9-22-1850

10-11-1913

   Samuel Gill



2-10-1821



1-24-1899

William McBride


3-11-1832
9-12-1866

7-13-1908

   Eliza Taylor



9-23-1838



3-15-1899

Robert M. McBride


8-22-1834
10-14-1858

6-3-1914

   Sarah Jane Martin


1-2-1838



5-26-1903

George D. McBride


6-10-1837
9-30-1869

3-10-1916
   Anna Stevens


not known



not known

Samuel J. McBride


12-15-1839
9-14-1869

7-16-1907

   Mary D. Cotton


10-28-1843



10-26-1911

David Armstrong McBride operated an Inn, or hotel, in New Castle, Pa. for many years.  It was in a building still standing on East Washington Street, formerly Pittsburgh Street, and just east of where the Pennsylvania Railroad crosses, and on the south side of the street.


Rebecca Jane and Amiziah Kelly lived until their deaths on a farm located about four miles southwest of Slippery Rock in Butler County, Pa.


Alexander McBride was one of the Forty-niners who went to California via wagon train in search of gold.  He returned shortly after the war of the Rebellion and is reputed to have brought with him considerable gold.  He purchased property in Harlansburg where he lived until his death and made a home for the children of his older brother, David. His remains lie in Plaingrove Presbyterian Cemetery.

Thomas McBride was mayor of New Castle, Pa., just prior to the War of the Rebellion.  He served in the Union Army with the rank of Major in the Paymaster Department.  Later he resided for some years in Philadelphia, Pa., where he died.  He and his wife and their children are buried in Graceland Cemetery, near New Castle, Penna.

Sarah Ann and Samuel Gill lived all of their lives in Lawrence Co., Pa.  It is not known where they or there several children are buried.
William McBride enlisted in the 103rd Regiment, company I, Dec. 13, 1861.  He was a sergeant.  Was shot in the neck and taken prisoner and held as such about seven or eight months in Andersonville Prison.


Robert M. McBride purchased a farm on the Scrubgrass Road about three miles east of Harlansburg, in Lawrence County, Pa., about the year 1860.  He later traded the farm to his father-in-law for the larger ancestral lands of the Martin family.  Both these lands lie along the banks of Martin Run and north of slippery Rock Creek.  On these lands of all of the children of Robert M. and Sarah Jane Martin McBride were born and grew up.  Robert M. McBride, in addition to being a successful farmer, was a breeder and dealer in horses.  In his earlier years he had worked as a wagon maker.  No doubt this led to his invention of the first known ball bearing constructed so it was a complete unit.  It was very similar in principle to the present New Departure Unit bearings, now widely used.  He was granted a patent for his invention about the year 1885.  About ten years later he gave up farming and with his younger brother Samuel, and others, organized a company to produce the bearings and to adapt them to and install them for various uses.  One of the first applications was in roller coaster cars operating in an amusement park at Rock Point, on the Beaver River where it is joined by the Connequessing.  When one considers  how many uses have been made of the ball and other antifriction bearings since the time 1895 or 1896, it would seem that the above venture could not have helped succeeding.  The Hyatt Roller Bearing, which was so widely used by Henry Ford and other early manufacturers of automobiles was developed about the same time.  As we look backward in history we must conclude that while our ancestor, Robert M. McBride, was possessed of mechanical genius and imagination, he and those associated with him, lacked the experience to develop and sell the idea, for the venture survived only about two years.  After this Robert McBride built up a retail milk distribution business in New Castle.  He was the first to deliver milk to the customers in glass bottles.  Later he expanded into the retail grocery business which he continued until his retirement at the age of seventy-two years.  He died in the home of his daughter, Mrs. William M. White, and his remains are now in Plaingrove Presbyterian Cemetery along with his wife and three of his children.  In the same cemetery are the remains of his father and mother, David Armstrong, Polly Armstrong McBride, Alexander McBride, his father, three of his brothers, his wife’s father and mother, William and Margaret (Peggy) Marshal Martin, her grandmother, Jane McNeese Martin, her grandfather and grandmother, Joseph and Sarah (maiden name not known) Marshal and several of her other relatives of the McNeese family.

George Dennison McBride served in the Union Army during the War of the Rebellion.  Records of his service are not complete, however it is known he was at one time in the Hospital Corps, stationed in Nashville, Tenn., and cared for the body of Capt. William Stewart Jack, his cousin, who was killed in action.  He was a thirty-second-degree Mason.  He spent the latter years of his life in Gallipolis, Ohio, where he had a business selling musical instruments. 

Samuel J. McBride enlisted in Company H, 78th Regiment, Pennsylvania Volunteers, on its original organization at Butler, Penna., and was mustered into service of the United States on the 17th of September, 1861, for the term of three years as a Sergeant.  He received his commission as 2nd Lieutenant, No. 25, 1862.  On Feb. 6, 1863, he was commissioned as a 1st Lieutenant on the field of battle, by command of Col. Sirwell.  He assumed command of Company H. 78th Regt. Oct 24, 1864, and was discharged Nov. 4, 1864.  He lived on a farm in Lawrence County, Pa., near Eastbrook until his death.  As mentioned above he was associated with Robert M. McBride in a manufacturing venture, 1896 until 1898.
History of the Martin family:  The records of this family go back only to Charles Martin.  In a letter written by John R. Martin, a descendant of Charles Martin, which letter is still in existence and dated at Grove City, Pa., Feb. 7, 1930, he advised that he was writing “A Memorial of the Martins” back to Dundee, Scotland, about 1739, as near as he was able to place the date.  He mentioned having the history of their capture by the Indians in 1755 and their release, 1764.  He claimed to have pictures of the place where they were sold to the French and that the buyer’s name was Bigsbee.  He says that Charles Martin, his great-grandfather lived in Dennison Town, in Westmoreland County, in a log house 16’x24’ where James Martin, the writer’s grandfather, was born and he, Charles Martin, there received $600 in back pay for his service as a Sergeant Major in the Continental Army during the Revolutionary War, the time was the year 1785. He mentions having a history of the Martin family down to the year 1790.  From that history he was able to say that Charles Martin had only one daughter and that she was burned to death. A brother named John, never married.  He speaks of the brothers being separated but gives no details.  Another letter written by George W. Gibbons of Wurtemburg, near Elwood City, Pa., and published in the New Castle (Pa.) News in late 1934 or early 1935, reads as follows:- David Studebaker, one of the first white men to set foot in Worth Township, Butler, Co., Pa., was a relative of Clement Studebaker, of near Alliance, Ohio, famed wagon maker and father of the automobile manufacturers.  Gibbons, a one-time resident of  Worth Township continues; “The first two white men to set foot on Worth Township were David Studebaker and Abraham Schneider.  A party of twelve, including these two men, left Greensburg in 1790. They came as far as Freeport when ten of them turned back on hearing the Indians in that region were hostile, but young Studebaker and Schneider traveled on by themselves until they reached the site of the old Fair grounds at Butler, where they camped for the night.   The next day they traveled on until they  reached slippery rock Creek near what is now Moore’s Corners, where they prepared to camp for the night.  While cooking their supper a band of Indians came along and engaged them in conversation.  Finding they were hunters, the Indians took them to their camp and entertained them.  This David was the son of the David Studebaker who, with his sister, was stolen from their parents by the Indians, in the Cumberland Valley, in the year 1755, and remained in captivity for nine years in Western Pennsylvania and Ohio.  His sister, at the age of twenty, was thrown from a horse and killed.  He was liberated in 1764 on the Muskingum River.  At the age of thirty-four he enlisted in the Continental Army and was an intimate friend of General George Washington. Note the similarity of the dates between this account and that of Charles Martin.)
The younger Studebaker and Schneider built a cabin on Wolf Creek near the point where the bridge on the New Castle-Slippery Rock road crosses it.  They were joined her thirty years later by Studebaker’s father.  Worth Township was named for Gen. Worth of Mexican War fame in later time.  About 1791, Benjamin Jack,  John and William McNeese, brothers, Thomas Humphrey, Charles Martin, and Charles Coulter, came to the same district.  William Elliot, John Elliott and John Dennison came 1793.  Jacksville, at this early time called Mechanicsburg, was named Jacksville in honor of Benjamin Jack.  The town, sixty years ago, contained a woolen mill conducted by Charles Coulter and John Balph. (It was later operated by an Englishman named Sutliff.)  A tannery was conducted by Alexander Balph who later moved to New Castle and James Maxwell assumed charge.  The first frame house was erected by Rev. Wm. Woods, on the John Pisor farm.  Benjamin Jack built the first brick house and planted the first orchard.  Alexander McBride built the first flour mill.  In a letter written to this writer in January of 1935, he states he knew my father, Robert M. McBride, and my Uncle William McBride.  He also knew George Armstrong and many other of the older people who lived around Slippery Rock and Jacksville.  He says he is a descendant of the McNeeses, his grandmother being a daughter of Uriah McNeese.  He writes that most of the history in his published letter was told him by David Studebaker over fifty years before he wrote it.
Charles Martin was born February 5, 1751, most likely in the Cumberland Valley, perhaps his parents were massacred by the Indians at the same time he was taken prisoner by them.  It is known his wife’s name was Agnes, that she was born in the year 1761, but here maiden name was not known, nor is the date or place of their marriage.  Charles Martin died November 19, 1828, and his wife Agnes Martin, September 26, 1814.  These dates are on headstones marking their resting places in Plaingrove Presbyterian Cemetery.  Charles Martin is known to have seen service in the Continental Army during the Revolutionary War, but his record has never been found.  He came to Mercer County – that part which is now in Lawrence County, Pa., - some time in the 1790’s.  He came from Westmoreland County.  He was allotted a soldier’s warrant, 213 acres and 6 perches of land in Wolf Creek Township, Mercer County, January 22, 1802, by paying a registration fee of some $3.65.  The receipt for that payment is now in the possession of Robert McKinney White, having been turned over to him with other old family papers some four years ago (1953).  Portions of that tract were sold to other early settlers at various times, but a good part of it was passed on to James Martin who was one of two sons of Charles Martin.  It is tradition that Charles Martin came to the settlement around Slippery Rock and Wolf Creek some time between 1790 and 1800.  It is said that he was traveling with a party of the Shields family who were on their way to the southwestern part of Mercer County, and who settled near what is now the town of New Bedford, in Lawrence County.  It is said that he was taken sick on the way and stopped with the McNeese family, who cared for him until he was recovered.  It is very likely that he was already acquainted with that family as they had come to the settlement very early from Westmoreland County.  It is also possible that he was taken ill before reaching Westmoreland County and was cared for there.  It is known that he served in the Washington Militia, 1778 to 1783, with the rank of Major-General, in command of Militia under General Meade, at Erie, 1812, and of Militia of Beaver, Mercer, Butler and Warren Counties, to August 1814.  All that is definitely known about his life before coming to the Butler County area is that he came with his wife and two sons from Westmoreland County.
It is very likely that many of the families who came from Westmoreland County were survivors of the Hannastown Massacre which occurred in the late 1700’s.  The site of Hannastown is about eight or tem miles north of Greensburg, Pa., on what is known as Bush Run.  The settlement was attacked by a large band of Indians.  All the buildings were burned to the ground and many of the settlers murdered.  The settlement was never rebuilt but only a few years ago this writer stood on the site where outlines of buildings could clearly be seen.  Mr. Gibbons, in his writing, has declared that Studebaker and Schneider were the first white men to set foot in worth Township.  There is reason to believe he may have been mistaken.  It is a matter of history that George Washington, when yet only a captain of militia, made quite a journey from the east to Fort Pitt at what is now Pittsburgh, Pa., and from there to the Camp of King Beaver at a point on the Beaver River just south of what is now West Pittsburgh, Pa., and from there to Fort Venango, at what is now Franklin, Pa.  There is no doubt he traveled over the route which was laid out by John Harris, Jr., and which was mentioned in the history of the Harris family.  It is also a matter of history that Washington and his party traveled from King Beaver’s Camp, up Big Run, then portaged over to Slippery Rock Creek in the vicinity of what is now Harlansburg in order to avoid rough going in the valley’s of the Connequessing and Slippery Rock, below Harlansburg.  Then they followed Slippery Rock Creek to Wolf Creek, up Wolf Creek and again portaged to the Allegheny River somewhere about the present location of Kennerdell; then up the Allegheny to the present site of Franklin.  He made that journey in 1753.  The Bush Run Battle and massacre was August 5, 1763.  When the Slippery Rock-Wolf Creek country was just virgin forest there was quite an open sort of field on the north side of Slippery Rock Creek and just east of Taylor Run, and the site of the now gone Elliott Mill.  This was known among the early settlers as the “Old Indian Field”.  A number of very old apple trees grew in that field.  It is said the Indians had planted these trees and that the field was a sort of ceremonial ground.  It was said the Indians were accustomed to gather here each year for a sort of harvest moon ceremonial dance to celebrate the gathering of the season’s fruits.  One can today see a sort of mound or raised section about the middle of what was that field.  The road way of route 108, to the road between New Castle and Slippery Rock town passes very close to the mound.  There used to be a peculiar swirl in the very tall grass just a short distance from the mound and it was known as the fairy ring.  There is another very pronounced mound on the land once owned by Charles Martin and his descendants.  It is just south of the present buildings and east of Martin run.  It has a shape which leads one to wonder if it may not be the work of Mound Builders.
Charles Martin is said to have taken twigs from the apple trees in the Indian field and to have grafted them onto trees on his land, probably about 1800.  Some of these trees were still living and bearing fruit during the boyhood of this writer.  We know nothing of William Martin, the other son of Charles Martin, but James Martin married Jane McNeese. There is a tradition that she was the first white woman to cross Slippery Rock Creek.  She, her father, and her brother, came to what is now eastern Butler County from Westmoreland County somewhere around 1795.  She was then only sixteen years old.  They took up homestead south of Slippery Rock Creek in what is now the western edge of Butler County and near the present town of Jacksville.  They came in the early summer and built a cabin of some sort.  The trip had of necessity to be made on horseback and only such goods as could be transported were brought along.  In the fall the father returned to Westmoreland County for the rest of his family and such stock and personal property as they had been compelled to leave behind.  The two children were left alone in the cabin and during the absence of their father a band of Indians came and ransacked the cabin.  The children, seeing them approach, hid themselves in the rafters and had to watch the savages rip their bedding to pieces and use the ticks to carry away their provisions.  It was a very narrow escape and being left as they were they would have undoubtedly been unable to survive had not the trapper, named Studebaker, happened along, - (no doubt the same mentioned in Mr. Gibbons’ letter.)  He took them to the cabin of another settler named Taylor, some three miles distant.  Another tradition is that the father of Jane McNeese later had a certain enemy among the Indians and on one occasion this Indian attempted to entice the father out of his cabin, intending to shoot him.  The Indian concealed himself behind a log near the cabin and “gobbled,” imitating the call of a wild turkey.  McNeese, however, detected a defect in the “gobble” and, taking his flintlock gun, went out on the side of the cabin away from the sound.  He circled around through the woods and came upon the Indian from the rear.  The Indian was lying behind the log with his gun aimed at the door of the cabin, ready to shoot should his intended victim come out.  No details are given but it is quite certain that that “turkey” never “gobbled” again.  For many years there was gun among the positions of the McNeese family. It has been said they were very careful to keep out of the sight of any Indian who might be about.  This writer recalls being told of that gun and that it was exhibited from time-to-time at family reunions of the McNeese family.  From this account it would seem that the McNeese family was the first of our ancestors to come into the unsettled country along Slippery Rock Creek, and it is very probable that Jane McNeese’s father, probably John, also saw service in the Continental Army.
Jane McNeese was born in Westmoreland County, May 5, 1774.  She was married to James Martin February 3, 1807, and she died July 16, 1867, aged 93 years, 2 months, and 7 days.  Neither the date of birth not the date of death of James Martin is known.  It is , however, known that he was buried at his own request on the land he inherited from his father, Charles Martin.

He met his death while engaged in building the first church in that vicinity.  A tree which was being felled for use in the building crashed on him, killing him.  He had purchased w tract of land from the Western University of Pennsylvania, October 14, 1826.  At his death his lands were divided one-third to his widow, and the remainder among his children, then living.  His widow, Jane McNeese Martin made an arrangement with their second son, William, whereby she deeded her share of the land to this son in consideration of his furnishing her a home, horse and buggy, and a number of sheep, all of which he agreed to maintain.  This agreement is still in existence and is in the possession of Robert M. White.  It is dated October 22, 2849 and is the evidence James Martin was killed prior to that date.  His son had a marker prepared for his grave which this writer understands is, or was only a few years ago, in the loft of a grain storage house on the land now owned by one, Homer L. Glenn.
The location of the grave was pointed out to the writer by William Martin, the writer’s maternal grandfather, shortly before his death on March 12, 1895.  At that time it was close to the top of a very steep bank which had, at some time in the past, been the north bank of Slippery Rock Creek.  However, at the time the location was made known to this writer the course of the stream had shifted some one hundred  and fifty yards, southward, leaving a sort of pond.  The earth from the steep bank had been slipping downward for many years, and the place had become known as “The Slide”.  There was an open field which extended from the top of the bank just described, north to the highway.  The grave was located near a fence which separated the field just mentioned from the one to the west of it.

The church which he was helping to build at the time of his death was never entirely completed but was the meeting place for persons of the Covenenter faith.  The site was very near the spot where he was buried which his son William, pointed out to the writer.  It was then between his house and his barn.  The  Rev. Blackwood whose son was a practicing physician in New Castle, Penna., about 1900, and whose grandson was and Eye and Ear Specialist there in 1930 and later in the same city, was the minister.  State Route which passes through what was the property of James Martin, was then known a Scrubgrass Road and traditionally, was an early Indian Trail, perhaps the one over which George Washington and his party travelled on their journey about 1753.
The first school house in this section was built about the year 1818 on the lands of the Martin heirs.  It was near what was later known as the Robert McCune residence.  One account shows it was built by John Martin and that William Jack taught in it. “John Martin” is a name which appears many times in these old records.  It is not known which John Martin is credited with building the school.  The first mention of John Martin is in the letter written by John Martin which has been mentioned herein.  This account states that Charles Martin had a brother, John, who never married.  Another tradition is that John Martin lived with the Indians for many years and that he was very friendly with the Indians under Chief Guyasuita who died and is buried in Franklin, Penna. It is said that John Martin made the coffin in which he was buried.  The grave is on the south bank of the Allegheny River, beside a very large rock just south of the bridge over which U.S. Route 322 crosses the river.  From the road, directly opposite it across the river, one can clearly see the Historical Marker by this rock..

William Marin inherited from his father, James, the eastern portion of the land which was originally granted to James Martin on his soldier’s warrant and on which William Martin had built a home and where all of his children were born.  Later he purchased from his sister, Sarah, and her husband, Joseph Woods, - who migrated to the west taking up land in what is now Nebraska, somewhere near Omaha, - the part Sarah Martin Woods inherited from her father.  They were last heard from about 1903 and were having a rough time due to crop failures.  They had several children none of whose names are known to this writer.  There was a letter from them among the papers given by this writer to Robert M. White  this writer recalls helping to make up a Christmas package in 1903 to be sent to them.

William Martin, by the purchase from his brother and under agreement with his mother, was then in possession of all of the original land owned by his grandfather.  That land was later traded  to Robert M. and Sarah Jane Martin McBride, this writer’s father and mother.  Other land owned by James Martin, was inherited by Samuel P. Martin and Jane Martin Morehead.  Most of  the latter lands had been purchased by James Martin and were not part of the original grant.  All of the children of Robert R. McBride and Sarah Jane Martin McBride were born and grew up on the same land which was part of the original grant.  Charles Martin had sold a portion of the original grant of land which lay south of Slippery Rock Creek to one, J, Bennet.  William Martin sold another small plot south of the Creek, to Adam Pizer, in the year 1833, and Robert R. McBride sold the portion which lay north of Scrubgrass Road to William Elliott about 1860.  William Martin also sold a small tract to one George Gibbons and it was later transferred to Henry Sutliffe.  That transfer was never recorded until the year 1933.  Robert R. McBride, about the year 1895, agreed to cede a narrow strip of land between the land of Sutliffe and Slippery rock Creek, to Sutliffe in return for Sutliffe’s agreeing to maintain a road which traversed the land and gave access to the highway.  That transfer was never recorded and resulted in quite a lawsuit in later years, long after both persons in the agreement had died.
Family of James and Jane McNeese Martin:-

Names of children, 



Dates

  Wives, Husbands

Born

Married

Died

Benjamin Martin

11-6-1807
No record

No record
Wife-name not known






Quite young
William


4-21-1810
No record

3-12-1895

Margaret (Peggy) Marshall
        -1818



7-9-1881

John



3-11-1813
No record

No record

Wife-not known

Agnes



11-17-1815
Unmarried

Very young

Charles


6-28-1821
Unmarried

Very young

Samuel P.


10-14-1824
No record

No record


Wife-not known
Sarah



2-16-1829
No record

No record

James Woods


No record



No record

Benjamin had one daughter, Jane, who married James Morehead.

William had two children, Sarah Jane who married Robert Munson McBride (family history  

appears later in this record) - and James M., who served in the Union Army during the                      War  of the Rebellion, - was captured and held prisoner at Libby Prison.  He later became a lawyer and practiced in New Castle, Penna.  At one time he owned an Orange Grove near De Funiak Springs, Walton County, Florida.  He was for many years City Solicitor for the City of New Castle.  He died in 1921 and is buried in Greenland Cemetery on the west side of New Castle.
Margaret Marshall Martin, wife of William and grandmother of this writer, was the daughter of Joseph and Sarah Marshall.  She died July 9, 1881, in her home and is buried in the Plain Grove Presbyterian  Cemetery.  Her death was very sudden and only her grand-daughter, Nettie McBride, who found her after she had fallen from her chair, was with her.

Parents of Margaret:-

Joseph Marshall died April 29, 1856, - aged 79 years, 7 mos., and 16 days, - just three days after his wife, Sarah, passed away, aged 77 years and 26 days.  Both are also buried in Plaingrove Presbyterian Cemetery.

Robert Munson McBride was born august 22, 1856, in a house which stood just east of the present Lawrence and Butler County line.  State Rt. 108, the New Castle to Slippery Rock road, now passes over the spot where the house stood.  He and Sarah Jane Martin were married October 14, 1858, at Plain Grove, Pa., by the Rev. Walker.  He died June 3, 1914, age 79 years, 9 months, and 12 days, after an illness of about four years which rendered him almost helpless, at the home of his daughter, Mrs. Minnie McBride White, (Mrs. William).

Sarah Jane Martin McBride was born January 2, 1838, in a house which stood about one hundred yards west of the intersection of the Plaingrove road and what was then known as the Scrubgrass Road, and is now State Road 108, and on land that which was originally settled by her grandfather Charles Martin in 1798.  She died May 26, 1903, age 65 years, 4 months, and 24 days, in her home in New Castle, Pa.  Both Robert and Sarah are buried in Plaingrove Presbyterian Cemetery. All of their children were born within an area less than one square mile but not all in the same house.  All but the older ones were born on the same tract of land as their mother.

Family of Robert Munson and Sarah Jane Martin McBride:-

Names of children,

Wives, husbands


Born


Married

Died

Cora Ida McBride


6-14-1859




2-6-1940

  William R. McCune


7-29-1856

11-15-1883

6-17-1918*


(*Accidental death-telephone pole on which he was working broke.)                        

Laura Luella McBride


1-7-1861




2-21-1869


Mary Margaret McBride

8-1-1863




12-28-1863

Nettie May McBride


2-10-1865




7-17- 1941

  George Newton Clark

12-17-1854

11-15-1885

10-10-1945

Minnie Madeville McBride

3-3-1867




2-18-1931

   William M. White


11-17-1853

9-10-1885

5-13-1937

William Alexander McBride

12-20-1868




11-14-1905

   Eva R. Kildoo


10-2-1868

12-24-1891

2-4-1956

Fannie Luretta
McBride

7-9-1872




  - -19??

   Judson C. Norris


11-2-1863

11-10-1921

2-5-1927

Frank Martin McBride

10-27-1874




3-15-1898
Sarah Almira McBride

8-16-1877



            6-25-1949

Robert Reed McBride


9-29-1884




[12-1966]

   1st wife-Clara Eliz. Stright

12-11-1878

1-29-1907

10-27-1956

   2nd wife-Lizzie May Hockenberry
5-22-1803

2-25-1957




         Arblaster McBride

Children of:

Cora Ida and William R. McCune

James Elliott


9-15-1894




2- -1955



Mar. Agnes Brown



There were three children,-



Margaret, Martha, William



All married and there are children and grandchildren.


Martha Martin


11-14-1886



Mar. Fred A. Holmes


There are three children- all married.


Hannah May


5-1-1889



Mar. Robert Peebles



There are five daughters married and have children.


John Francis


11-9-1891




5-4-1963



Mar. Alice Miles






7-8-1951




There are two children,-



            John Francis III – married Jeanne Ramsey-




       They have four children.



           Alice Miles – married James Ogden-




       There are four children.



Mar. Margaret Heller



1-23-1954


William Myron

9-8-1903



Mar. Kathryn Mayne English



They have two daughters.

Nettie May and George Newton Clark


Jessie Madeville – married Ashley H. Hill



One child died in infancy.



Ashley also died in 1935.


Samuel Leslie – never married - 





11-7-1946


Margaret Ethel – married John B. Trussel



Have one child- married- has two children



Her name is Helen and is now Mrs. Byron Graves

Minnie Madevelle and William M. White


Robert McKinney, married Leola J. Little.


She died April 20, 1952.  He later married Stella


Araminta Diefenderfer.


Two sons by first marriage, Jack Little and Robert McKinney, Jr.


Both are married and have children. 


William Richardson – died in infancy


Margaret Luretta, married Carl C. Hall



There is no offspring.  Margaret died-



10- -1964


Leah Clair, married Welty O. Rugh



There was one son who married and died shortly thereafter.

William Alexander and Eva Kildoo McBride

William Percy Leon, married Molly Murray.



Have one son, Alexander Murray.


Robert Paul, married Margaret White who died in 1948.



He remarried,- Marguerite Kathryn Long, January 1, 1953



By the first marriage there are three sons,- Robert Paul, Jr.,



William Louis, and Garland Eugene.



There was also an adopted daughter, Luann Biddle.


All are, so far as this writer knows, married and no doubt have



children.

Fannie Luretta and Judson C. Norris


No children


Fannie Luretta died







3- -1963

Robert Reed  and Clara Elizabeth Stright McBride

Helen Fidelia  married William Wade Dill, 4-14-1934, New Castle, Pa.


Helen Fidelia was born November 23, 1908, New Castle, Pa., - 1-31-1953


William Wade Dill was born August 22, 1908.  He is the son of Henry Gilbert and


Frances T. Dudley Dill.


They had two children, Joanne, born 4-14-1942





  John, born  3-28-1944

Clara Elizabeth Stright was the daughter of Ira Morris Stright and Rosaline Fidelia Moore Stright, who were married March 11, 1875.  Ira Morris was born April 21,1845 and died October 7, 1925. Rosaline Fidelia Moore was born January 8,1859 – died November 24, 1913.  They had three children – John Elmer was born June 6, 1876 and died February 2, 1896.  Clara Elizabeth was born December 11,1878. She married Robert Reed McBride, as heretofore accounted. Harry Buell was born November 20,1881; married to Ida May Dicks October 29,1913.  He died October 16,1947.  Ida May Dicks Stright was born February   23,1893. They have three sons, - Arthur Buell, born April 20, 1914, married to Mary Emma Sewall, October 9, 1939, has one daughter.

Robert Morris, born April 19, 1917; married to Nancy Orsick May 3,1841.  She died while he was serving in World War II.  He remarried in 1955 and has one son to that marriage.  His second wife’s maiden name is not known to this writer but her given name is Alma.  The child’s name is Michelle.

Elmer Dale was born September 5, 1924; married Patricia Hill April 24,1947.  They have no children.

Ira Morris Stright was born in Crawford County, Pa., - the son of Peter Roy Stright and Elizabeth McDonnald Stright, who were married March 24, 1831. Peter Roy was born November 24,1795, and died May 14, 1874.  Elizabeth McDonnald was born January 3, 1805, and died April 15,1874.   They had three children; -


Mary Malissa, born April 1, 1837, died August 8, 1853.

William Roy, born December 10, 1839, died January 23, 1909, -




Married to Mahalia Jane Amon November 12, 1869.


Ira Morris – who was the father of Clara Elizabeth Stright McBride.

Rosaline Fidelia Moore was born in Venango County, Pa., the daughter of John Moore and Velonia Saphronia Sykes Moore, who were married January 14,1831.  John Moore was born December 9, 1831, and died June 8, 1874.  Velonia S. Sykes Moore was born May 14, 1832 and died December 12, 1910.  they had five children;  George was born August 18, 1851 and died October 22, 1852; Rosaline Fidelia, born January 8, 1853 and was the mother of Clara Elizabeth Stright McBride;  Lucy Ann was born November 1, 1855, married Jacob Alva Free March 11, 1875, who died (date not known0;  she remarried to James Pringle August 27, 1907.  There were three children from the first  union; Cora Fidelia Free born February 8, 1876 and died February 1, 1902; Earl Alva was born January 20, 1879, married Laura Linch who was born  September 10, 1883.  He died in an automobile accident in Warren , Ohio, July 31, 1948.  They had two children; Viola, born July 16, 1904, - died an infant, 1907; Ralph was born January 26, 1906 (Jacob Alva was born August 17, 1814 – Lewis A. Marsh November 18, 1839, James Pringle’s date of birth is not known. Lucy Ann Moore Pringle died September 8, 1921); Bertha Free was born November 21, 1881, married to John McMullen June 23, 1912, who died about one year later.  She remarried to Ellsworth Hunt Marsh March 21, 1914, who died between 1940 and 1947.  Alva Samuel Moore was born September 15, 1859, married  to Martha Graff September 13, 1880.  One daughter was born to this union, - Blanche Moore, June 6, 1881.  Martha Graff Moore died shortly after the daughter was born and Samuel Moore remarried Margie Bush March 31, 1886.  She was born March 2, 1858 and died in 1919.  Samuel Moore again married – Elizabeth Smith, September 20, 1919.  Samuel died in April of 1935.  Martha May Moore was born May 26, 1864, was married to Ira Buell Holcomb March 12, 1881, who was born February 26, 1854, and died December 16, 1893.  Two children were born to that union; Carl C. Holcomb, born May 21, 1882, died May 18, 1902; Lucy E. born May 10, 1885, died April 10, 1900.

Martha May Moore Holcomb married Dr. A. S. McCaskey, September 22, 1904, who was born December 31, 1852.  His death is not recorded.  Martha May died in the home of her brother, Samuel, in Franklin, Pa., on February 24, 1921.  Velonia Sykes Moore married Horace S. Chase March 9, 1876, and after his death married John Reed July 2, 1895.  It is known she outlived him but the date of his death is not recorded.

All of the children of John and Velonia Sykes Moore are buried in the Mercer Cemetery, Mercer, Penna.  Morris and Fidelia Stright and their two sons are buried in the same cemetery.  Clara Elizabeth Stright McBride is buried in Graceland Cemetery, near New Castle, Pa.  William A. McBride, his wife Eva Kildoo McBride and Margaret White McBride, wife of Robert Paul McBride, are buried on a lot joining the one in which the entire family of Thomas and Eliza Winans McBride rest.

The forgoing family histories have been gathered from many records and sources and have been transcribed this twenty-seventh day of October, in the year Nineteen Hundred and fifty seven by Robert Reed McBride, great-grandson of David Armstrong; great, great-grandson of Charles Martin; great grandson of James Martin; grandson of Alexander McBride and William Martin; and son of Robert Munson and Sarah Jane Martin McBride.









Robert R. McBride  

Transcribed, including, all of the original spelling, punctuation and grammatical errors, from the original typewritten document. It has been proof-read in an attempt to not include any of mine own errors. 
Kathryn McCune Long.
July 1, 2003




ADDENDUM TO “FAMILY HISTORIES”
This information was handwritten, by Kathryn Mayne English McCune, on the original manuscript of Robert Reed McBride.

Page 14

The three children of Martha Martin McCune and Fred Holmes;


“John, Mary Ellen, and George (2 sons)” John and Mary Ellen had no children.

Correction/addition to the children of Hannah May McCune and Robert Peebles.

There are four daughters;



Ida Josephine m. Harvey Brady; 2 sons, 1 daughter.



Hannah Louise m. Howard Kugel



Martha Agnes – never married



Luella May m. Harold Johnson

Addition to William Myron McCune and Kathryn English


Married 1-15-1930, New Castle Lawrence County, PA

William M. d. 8-23-1982


Kathryn, b. 1-17-04, New Castle, PA; [d. 12-25-1990, Dublin, Ohio]


2 daughters, 2 grandsons, 2 grandaughters.

Page 15

Addition to Leah Clair White and Welty O. Rugh


There was also a daughter, Sara Madeville Rugh, m. Paul Rowland.



1 son- Paul – married with three daughters.

K.M. Long

July 1, 2003
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